
CECIL COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS SERVICES 

GEORGE WASHINGTON CARVER EDUCATION LEADERSHIP CENTER 
201 BOOTH STREET    •     ELKTON, MD 21921 

 
phone: 410.996.5429    •    fax: 410.996.5137    •    www.ccps.org 

  

Jeffrey A. Lawson, Ed.D.   William H. Malesh 
Superintendent of Schools   President, Board of Education 

 

 

 

Our Mission: to provide an excellent prekindergarten through graduation learning experience that enables ALL students to demonstrate 

the skills, knowledge, and attitudes required for lifelong learning and productive citizenship in an ever-changing global society. 
 

March 21, 2019        
      

       

BID# 19-18: DRIVERS’ EDUCATION CLASSROOM INSTRUCTION 
 

           (5 pages) 

 

ADDENDUM #1 
 

 

This addendum is to acknowledge the pre-bid meeting’s attendance and shared information, to make 

changes and clarify verbiage in the bid document and change the Questions and Bid due dates. 

Bidders and related parties will be responsible to have read and understand all documents, the scope of 

work, addenda and all related solicitation documents issued. These documents will become attached to and 

part of the solicitation and award of bid contract. 

 

Only the information noted in this document as a ‘CHANGE’ or a ‘CLARIFICATION’ will modify 

the Bid document. 

 

CHANGE:  BID DUE DATE:  FRIDAY, MARCH 29, 2019, AT 2:00 PM, ET, LOCAL TIME. 

 

For Inclement Weather: Bid Due Date will be the next business day, Monday, April 1, 2019, 

at 2:00 PM, ET, Local Time. Bidders must check the CCPS website 

www.ccps.org for closings of Central offices. 

 

CHANGE:  QUESTIONS DUE DATE: TUESDAY, MARCH 26, 2019, AT 1:00 PM, ET. 

 

A non-mandatory pre-bid meeting was held at the Cecil County Public Schools (CCPS) G.W. Carver Center 

for Educational Leadership on March 15, 2019 at 10:00 AM. In attendance were: Best Choice Driving 

School – Phillip Dane Cooper, Sr., Andrea Smeltzer;  Cecil College – Maria Cintron, Tina Durborow, 

Michele Michalski, Gib Goff; Cecil Driving School – Robert Cornell; Susquehanna Driving Academy – 

Amanda Kopatch, Tony Sjolie; CCPS – Anne Gellrich, Joanna Dipaola, Rick Raulie. 

 

Below is a summary of the salient topics and questions covered at the pre-bid meeting. It conveys the 

questions and statement from prospective bidders. CCPS explained the purpose and primary requirements 

for the bid. It was agreed that CCPS would contact Mr. William Kraft at MDOT-MVA prior to moving 

forward with this solicitation to assure prospective bidders of COMAR compliance.  

 

 

 

http://www.ccps.org/
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1) Statement: A concern was expressed with structure of classroom time. 30 hours classroom instruction 

plus 6 hours of behind-the-wheel training is required to be completed within an 18 week period to complete 

the program as dictated by COMAR.  Response: (Correct number of hours, but feasible with this bid if the 

eighteen (18) week period is waived by the students to a twenty two (22) or twenty three (23) week period.) 

 

2) Question: Why is the bid not open to all MVA certified driving schools in the state? Why is it only open 

to the driving schools in the (Cecil) county?  Answer: This bid is to support Cecil County Public Schools 

students only during the school day, specifically during tenth (10th) grade when physical education is an 

elective and the CCPS current graduation requirements exceed the amount needed for physical education. 

This would help students to get driver’s licenses and be able to get jobs. 

 

3) Question: What if a student misses a class? How can they make it up without incurring additional cost? 

Would they have to travel to the driving school to make up time?  Answer: In the event of a student missing 

class, efforts will be made to help students make up classes in the next marking period or arrangements 

may be made to attend another class after school hours. See page 21 of Bid document, #10. See CHANGE 

below. 

 

4) Question: Students must be at least 15 years old to take drivers education. This means that some students 

would not be allowed to enroll until the 4th marking period. If a student misses class during this time, how 

could they make it up without having to wait until the following school year?  Answer: CCPS will work 

with the award Bidders to establish reasonable methods where students (and parents) can comply to meet 

the requirements for classes and testing. See page 21 of Bid document, #10. See CHANGE below. 

 

CHANGE: Fees of additional/make up classes will be prorated at the published driving school prices and 

policies.  CCPS wants to create an hourly maximum charge for any make up classes. Make up classes must 

be scheduled within a reasonable time to be agreed upon by CCPS prior to the bid award.  

SUBMIT YOUR PUBLISHED POLICIES AND STANDARD CONTRACT (FOR AUGUST 2019) 

WITH YOUR BID RESPONSE. 

 

5) Statement: Taking the class does not guarantee that a student will graduate with their driver’s license. 

A student must receive 80% or higher to pass the test.  Response: Students must study and meet the MDOT-

MVA established requirements. Schools will reinforce this fact with parents and students. 

 

6) Statement: Bidder’s concern regarding the ability to advertise the driving school within the school 

building. Response: CCPS will assist with advertising to students and parents for Drivers’ Education 

Classroom Instruction classes. Since each school will assign students to the class, no advertising is 

necessary. 

 

7) Statement:  Before the driver education schools can bid, they need to know what times and days they 

would need instructors. Response: Schedules may be known as soon at mid to late May or at the latest, 

June 30, 2019. 

 

8) Question: Driver’s Education used to be offered in school. Why did it change in the first place? Could 

you model the new program after the previous? Answer:  Irrelevant. No, due to the lack of funding and 

other resources. 

 

9) Question: What happens if an instructor is sick, has to miss a class, or is otherwise unable to continue 

teaching the class? How would we find a substitute? (It takes approximately 6-9 months to hire/train a new 

driving instructor.)   
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Answer:  Driving schools must be flexible and have the capacity of qualified instructors to cover their 

contractual obligation to this CCPS bid solicitation. See page 23 of Bid document for Liquidated Damages. 

Parents and students must not individually bear a hardship for a business failure. 

 

10) Question:  If a student needs to be refunded after partial class completion due to instructor being 

unable to move forward, how would we refund? Would we prorate? Driving schools are required to 

refund a designated dollar amount (not a percentage) of their school’s fee, which would mean that the 

schools would lose money if they could not finish the course and have offered a lower rate for the school 

program.  Answer:  This answer was provided by Mr. William Kraft, Manager, Driver Education 

Programs Sections, Maryland Motor Vehicle Administration, by email on March 21, 2019 and is hereby 

incorporated into the bid as the basis for establishing a refund policy for CCPS students. “At issue is the 

fact that all driving schools are required to have a published refund policy for all of its students. The 

policies are typically cost based, taking into consideration that in most cases the provision of classroom 

instruction constitutes 20% of the school’s operating costs, while the provision of behind the wheel 

instruction typically comprises 80%. School’s published fee schedules are also reflective of this cost 

differential. It is our belief that the driving school would need to apply their already established and 

published refund policy to this bid.” Mr. Kraft also cited by a memorandum dated  January 26, 2011, 

Refund Policies: COMAR 11.23.02.08A(14); 11.23.02.08E and 11.23.01.20D. These regulations must be 

followed for this bid. 

 

11) Question: Parental involvement is extremely important for successful completion of the program. Even 

if you offer instruction during the school day, students still need many hours of behind-the-wheel training 

with a parent/guardian or other licensed adult outside of the classroom. Without that training on their own, 

the instructor cannot make most advantageous use of the 6 hours of behind-the-wheel training with the 

student. Do these students have access to complete this portion of the program outside of school?  

Answer:  Yes, that is how the bid award is set up so that the awarded classroom instruction company at 

each CCPS school location must also provide the behind-the-wheel portion of the training. 

 

12) Statement: Classrooms are required to have LCD projectors and a computer to complete the 

PowerPoint training. Response: All classrooms have LCD projectors. Bidders will work with CCPS 

Technology department to access technology. Bidders should supply their own laptop computer. 

 

13) Statement: Driving schools are not permitted to be subcontracted. CCPS would not be allowed to 

dictate what they do. (I.e. set the schedule, control the teaching space, control cost, etc.) Bid should stay 

away of certain verbiage, such as “contractor” that would indicate that any driving school was being 

subcontracted.  Response:  Statement contains incorrect information. This is not a subcontract situation. 

 

CLARIFICATION: COMAR does not prohibit a discount of fees for driver’s education instruction. CCPS 

students who qualify for the federal ‘F.A.R.M. – Free And Reduced Meal’ program are given discounted 

meals. However, CCPS cannot share F.A.R.M. information. Therefore, the request for a discount for 

F.A.R.M. is rescinded as it cannot be verified. Each Bidder should follow their own procedures to discount 

or seek funding assistance for low income students. CCPS will seek support for F.A.R.M. students in the 

form of scholarships. 

 

CHANGE:  Delete paragraph in Pricing section, item 3, page 19, “Contractors must provide a more highly 

reduced unit price discount for Free and Reduced Meal (FARM) eligible students. FARM is a …” 

 

CHANGE:  Delete paragraph in Scope of Services section, item 5, page 21, “These high schools will have 

Drivers’ Education Classroom Instruction beginning in the 2019-2020 school year. The percentage …” 
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14) Statement: If the driving schools are bidding to teach driver’s education at different schools in the 

county, there would be price variations from school to school. For example, a student taking driver’s 

education at Perryville High School may pay a different price than a student taking drivers’ education at 

Bohemia Manor High School. How would this work for different students taking the course throughout the 

county? How can the driving schools bid competitively and still offer fair pricing to students of CCPS?  

 

Response: CCPS cannot tell bidders how to bid. Bidders must determine their rates independently to be 

competitive and successful for bid award(s). Indicate your first and second preferences and offer a 

competitive price for Line 2. Unit price governs the bid award. Line 3 has been deleted per the CHANGE 

noted below.  

 

CHANGE: The Proposal / Bid Form, page 31 has been REVISED and is attached in this addendum. 

SUBMIT THE ATTACHED ADDENDUM #1 REVISED PROPOSAL / BID FORM WITH YOUR 

BID RESPONSE. The CHANGE indicated that unit prices are for a total of thirty six (36) hours, not thirty 

(30) hours, is to allow for package pricing by Driving Schools for bidding purposes. Lowest responsive and 

responsible unit pricing for each school, as indicated on Line 2 on the REVISED Proposal / Bid Form will 

govern where a thirty six (36) hour classroom and behind-the-wheel unit price is requested for the bid. 

 

15) Statement: CCPS should contact Mr. Bill Kraft, Driver Instruction Program Manager, by telephone to 

determine compliance issues with this bid and if this bid is an effort the MDOT-MVA might support.  

 

Response: CCPS contacted Mr. William Kraft, as well as Ms. LaCheryl Jones, Ms. Madison Lumpkin and 

Mr. Phillip Dacey on March 20, 2019 by conference call to discuss the basic premise for this solicitation, 

ask for guidance and review of the solicitation documents. The call was also made to determine whether 

MDOT-MVA was supportive or opposed to any part of the documents and CCPS intention for students. 

 

16) Statement: Both parties are seeking financial support programs for Driver’s Ed.-Maryland Promise, 

YES, Social Services, etc. Are these programs only for drop-outs and students over 18? What other 

resources, scholarships, financial aid is available to help students offset the cost of drivers’ education? 

Response:  Both parties will continue to search for funding sources for student driver’s education. 

 

CHANGE: Class size is no more than thirty (30) students, not less than twenty (20) students, unless the 

quantity is agreed upon by the award Bidder. See page 21 of Bid document, #9. 

 

CLARIFICATION: Classroom and Behind-the-Wheel Instruction is for an eighteen (18) week period 

unless opposed by the students per COMAR. 

 

CLARIFICATION: Payment Plans must be offered to students and noted on each contract. CCPS 

Purchasing must evaluate and make final approval of payment plans prior to use. All will be similar for 

students. 

 

CHANGE: CCPS Purchasing department must review and approve all Award Bidder/Contractor/Driving 

School contracts prior to use. Any changes to contracts that affect price, schedule, testing, availability, etc., 

must be approved in advance by CCPS Purchasing department. 

 

Bidders obtaining the documents from the website are encouraged to review the website frequently 

to learn of any changes that may be made. Interested Bidders/Proposers are solely responsible for 

obtaining all relevant documents for CCPS solicitations, including, but not limited to: addenda, 

attachments, drawings and appendices. 
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CECIL COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS  
201 Booth Street Elkton, MD 21921 

BID #19-18: DRIVERS’ EDUCATION CLASSROOM INSTRUCTION 

ADDENDUM #1  

REVISED PROPOSAL / BID FORM 
The undersigned, having carefully examined the Contract Documents and having received clarification of 

all items of doubt or possible conflict hereby agrees to furnish all labor, supplies, permits, services, etc. 

necessary for Bid #19-18: Drivers’ Education Classroom Instruction as required in strict accordance 

with all applicable local, state, federal regulations. A thirty (36) six hr. rate is used for bidding purposes. 
 

UNIT PRICE - a flat, fixed rate including all fees, for one (1) student to complete the thirty (30) hours 

Drivers’ Education class using the required MD MVA curriculum to receive the MD MVA certificate of 

completion used to obtain a Class C driver’s license:  
 

1) Your Published Rate for Aug. 2019 to June 2020:           $________________  
Per 30 hours of classroom instruction + 6 hours behind-the-wheel instruction = 36 Hours Total 

 

2) CCPS Discounted (Bid) Rate for Aug. 2019 to June 2020:  $________________  
Per 30 hours of classroom instruction + 6 hours behind-the-wheel instruction = 36 Hours Total 

 

Submit your bid for two (2) school locations and up to three (3) locations and indicate on the list 

below your preferences with one (1) being your highest preference, etc. 

School Location / Potential Students 2019-20 Preference 

Location Preference:  

1 = highest preference,  

2 = next high preferred,  

3 = 3rd highest acceptable 

preference 

Bohemia Manor High / 190  

Elkton High / 262  

North East High  / 272  

Perryville High / 193  

Rising Sun High / 278  
 

As the duly authorized representative of the Contractor to make this agreement on behalf of the Contractor 

for which I am acting, I hereby declare that I have carefully examined the documents. I have received 

clarification on all items upon which any doubt arose, understand that all these form a part of the contract, 

and agree to complete all work as required to the satisfaction of Cecil County Public Schools.  
 

Acknowledgement of Addenda 

I/We acknowledge receipt of the following Addenda (if issued):  
 

Authorized Signature  ____________________________________ 

 

Addendum #1 ______  Addendum #2 _____ Addendum #3 ______  

 

*Note: Bidder must sign and submit Addenda with the proposal submission.  The same person 

signing the Addenda acknowledgement(s) must sign the Bid Form. 

 

___________________________________  _____________________________________ 

Company Name      Authorized Signature / Date 

___________________________________  _____________________________________ 

Address      Name Printed / Title 

___________________________________  ______________________________________  

Address      Representative Name & Email 


